
QA-205 
Legg-E?rreckson Farm 
Batts Neck, Kent I~land 
Private 

circa 1800-1815 

Constructed in the first ye?.rs of the 19th century, 
the early house on the Legg-Earreckson Farm is one of 
the most ~erf Pctly nreserv~d small period dwellings in 
the county. In overall forn and appearance, it bears 
much in common ·with other two storv brick houses in 
this region, and is nrim?rily nota~le for the fine 
Flemish bond brickwork of the front facade. The interior 
has hRd few alterations aside fro~ the insertion of a 
modern bath, and ~ost of the fine, Federal interior 
woodwork has survived intact. The most signific;mt 
feature of the house, however, is the unusual floor plan 
found on both thP first and second stories. The first 
floor plan consists of a n?rrow center passage with 
flanking rooms and an enclosed.stair in the south room 
rather th2n the passage, similar to the Clements F2rm 
(QA-48). The second floor is divided into two hAated 
chambers, a small stair passagP, and ?n unheated passage 
chamber th~t bisects the center of the house. This 
is the only recorded example of this plan variation 
in the ~ounty. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

The Legg-Earreckson Farm is located on the east 

side of Maryland Route 8 on Kent Island, approximnt8ly 

one mile north of the intersection with Batt•s 

Neck Road. The farm is now part of Batt's Neck 

Plantation, fronting on the south bank of Warehouse 

Creek. 

The early house on the Legg-Earreck~on Farm 

is of brick construction, 2 stories high, three bays 

wide and one room deep, with flush brick chimneys 

centered at each end of the pitched gable roof. A 

two story frame wing dating to the late 19th or 

20th century projects from the north gable wall of 

the main house. 

Th~ front facadA faces west toward the road. 

The door is located in the center b~y, flanked by 

a single window to north and south. Three windows 

are ranged across the second story and two cellar 

windows are located directly below each first floor 

window. There are no dormer windows on the roof. 

All of the original sash on this facade have been 

replaced with 2/2 Victorian sash excent for the 

north window on the second floor, which retains 

e;;rly 6/6 sash. The brickwork on this facade 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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is laid in Flemish bond above a common bond foundation 

with no water table or belt course. All of the openings 

on this facade have splayed brick jack arches. The 

eaves are trimmed ·with a box cornice, a handsome 

complex bed mold and a replaced complex crown mold. 

The roof is covered with asphault shingles. 

On the south gable wall, there is a single window 

with replaced 2/2 sash to the east of the chimney on 

the first and second floor and a pair of four-light 

windows flanking the chimney in the upper gable. The 

brickwork is laid in five-course bond; the rakeboards 

have been replaced. 

The rear facade is similar to the front facade, 

but the central door has been bricked in and replaced 

with a modern window. The fenestration is identical, 

including early 6/6 sash in the north bay of the second 

story and 2/2 replacement sash elsewhere. The brickwork 

i~ five-course bond; the cornice is boxed with the same 

~arly complex bed mold and replaced crown mold. 

The majority of the north gable wall is covered 

by the two story frame wing. The only exposed openings 

are a pair of four-light windows flanking.the chimney 

in the uppe~ g~ble. 
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The original interior nlan is an unusual variation 

of the center passage plan in which the passagP is quite 

narrow ana does not include a stair. The only stair 

is located in the southwesf corner of the qouth roo~, 

to the. right of thP fireplace~ This stair rises five 

steps along the west facade wall and then turns and 

continues as an enclosed winder against the south gable 

w2ll. The first five stens have an open-string carriage 

with a handsomely fluted scuare newel post, a si~plP 

rail and squarP balusters. The carriage is decor~ted 

with solid scrolled stair brackets and the area below 

the carriage is oaneled with beaded bo?rds set p?rallel 

to the carriage ?iPce. The original Federal mantel 

survives in this room. It consists of a board surround 

with reedPd pilasters framing the ooening below a reeded 

frieze and a complex molaed shelf with Federal moldings. 

A six-panel door ooens into a small closet under the 

stairs. The closet door opening is framed with ? Federal 

backband. The windows in this room have 9aneled s·offi ts 

and j~mbs'and ~re trimmed with beaded and rabbettd 

brokP.n-field ~rchitraves with a cove/astragal backband. 

The sill pieces below the windows are beaded and rabbeted 

as well. The interior door opening into the hall h.nS 

been replaced, but the opening is trimmed with a similar 
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Federal architravP with an ogee backhand. Beaded base­

board ·trim survives on all four walls. 

The passagP extends f roM front to rear and there 

see~s to be little doubt that it is an original feature. 

~he north wall is brick and although the south wall 

is frame, all of the trim matches the original woodwork 

elsewhere in the house. The passage has been partitioned 

in this century to form a small entry hall at the west 

~nd and a modern b~th to the east. The east door 

has been raplaced with a bathroom window. Original 

trim surviving in the passage includes the Federal 

architrave on the front (west) door and on the door 

-0pening into the south room, as well as portions of 

the beaded baseboard. The door opening into the north 

room has been reduced in width approximately 4 to 6 

inches and the early door renlaced with a simnle /0th 

century rloor. Surnrisingly, there is evidencP of a 

blocke<l door onening at thP east_end of the nassage that 

once opP-ned into the north room. 

The north roo~ has been comoletely renovatPd. The 

fireplac~ has been blocked, the original flooring covered, 

and all trim replaced. A door to the right of the 

fireplace pnens into the wing. 

~he second floor plan is equally unusu~l. The stair 
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rises to a small stair passage thnt extends along the 

south end of the west facade and opens into a second 

passage that bisects.the housf' from east to west, 

corresponding to the first floor passage. There is 

a large chamber to the north and a small chamber to the 

southe?st. An enclosed winder stair in the northeast 

.corner of the north chamber provides access to the attic. 

The brick partition that forms the north w2ll of 

the first floor passage is carried u~ through the second 

floor, forming the north wa11· of the second floor 

"passage chamber" as well. The remaining second floor 

partitions are constructed of ·vertical beaded boards 

and appear to be original. There is no evidence of 

seams in the flooring or plaster to indicate altered 

stair or partition locations, so the pl?.n is assu~ed 

to be original. 

The stair opening in the stair nassage is enclosed 

~ith a plain railing with square newels and balusters. 

The board partitions in this room have been covered 

with sPveral layers of wallpaner. The doors opening 

into the southeast chamber and the passage chamber 

are framed with beadPd fascias and ogeP./fillet back­

hands. The six-panPl doors h~ve fully fiPldPd panels 

with an ogeP panel mold and are hung on early butt 
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hinges _and· fitted with Civil War period box locks. 

Other trim surviving in this room includes thP window 

architrave, a double beaded chairrail on the west wall, 

and beaded baseboard. 

~he small southeast chamber has been renovated. 

The firenlace has been blocked and the board nartitions 

concealed with drywall. The window trim and baseboard 

have been reolaced, but the door architrave survives 

·intact. 

The passage chamber extends through the center of 

the house from east to west and corresponds to the first 

floor passage except that .it is somewhat wider. The 

beaded partition that forms the south wRll has been 

covered with wallpaper but the seams are clearly visible. 

A two-piece chairrail is carried across the east and 

west walls of this room but evidently die not continu~ 

on the interior partitions. This chairrail is let in 

against partitions and does not match the chairrail 

in the stair oassage, so there seems little doubt that 

the partitions are original. This conclusion is reinforced 

by the beaded baseboa~d trim, which encircles the room 

and is carefully mitred in at the. corner~. The window 

Architraves are partially original with some l~ter 

repairs. The door to the north chamber has ~ beaded 
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frame but no brtckband. This door has six plain, 

raised panels with no panel mold. It is hung on butt 

hinges and has a mid-19th century "Corbin" box lock. 

In the north chamber, a blocked fireplace projects 

into the room on the center of the north gable w~ll, 

with an enclosed winder stair in the northeast corner 

leading un to the attic. The mantel survives in place. 

It is a beaded surround with an ogee backhand framing 

the opening below a molded Federal shelf. The stair 

rises four steos along the east wall and then continue~ 

as an enclosed winder against the north gable wall. 

It is fitted with a beaded batten door with a handsome 

Federal period spring latch. A .smaller beaded door 

opens into a closet under the stairs. To the left of 

the attic stairs, two later steps lead down through a 

low doorway into the second floor of the wing. 

Surviving early trim includes beaded window architr~ves 

with wioe ogee backhands, beaded baseboard, and evidence 

of a chairrail. This entire room has been scorched .by 

a fire but the damage is gener~lly superficial. 

The ~t~ic is floored but not plastered and is 

divided into two rooms. The exposed common rafter 

roof fr;:iming is whitewashed in the north chamber. 
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The house on the Legg-Earreckson Farm is one 

of the more interesting houses in the county. In 

overall form and exterior appearance, it bears 

much in co~mon with other two story brick houses 

in this region, and is primarily notable for the 

high quality of the Flemish bond brickwork on the 

east facade. 

The interior plan is quite unusual on both the 

first ~nd second floors, however. The first floor 

is an unusual variation of the center passage plan 

in which the nassage is auite narrow and does not 

include the stair, which is located in the southwest 

corner of the south chamber. This plan is almost 

identical to the James Clements House (QA-48) in 

the upper part of the county. The second floor 

plan is even more unusual, with a large heated 

chamber to the north and a s~aller heated chamber 

to the southeast, an unheated 11 passage chamber 11 

through the center of the house, and a small stair 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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passage to the southwest. No other second floor plan 

has been located in this county that bears even a slight 

resemblance. 

Interior details worthy of note include two Federal 

mantels, a simple but handso~~ stair, a variety of 

architrave, chairrail and baseboard trim, and be?ded 

vertical partitions on the second story. 
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LEGG-EARECKSON FARM 

Page 50 Q.f_ History and Houses 

~ ~ Paragraph 4 should read "During the LATE nineteenth century is 
passed to ..... 
The farm became the property of Thomas Benjamin Eareckson in 1880 
and he raised his children there. The 1890 Census is missing. 
The 1900 census lists him living on Monroe Street in Baltimore. 
His daughter, Emma· Winston Eareckson Murray, remembers growing up 
on that farm and living in that house. 

\ 

If the house does indeed date ca. 1795-1815 it was built by John 
Eareckson (ca. 1765 - 1826), a sixth generation descendant of 
Johan Ericksson who came to Kent Island in 1652 and received a 
patent for Stinton in 1658. L The wife of John Eareckson (died 1826) was Sarah or Ann 

Winchester. 
They had four children: 

Benjamin Winchester (inherited the home farm) 
Susan 
Martha 
Emeline 

We have a photograph of Benjamin Winchester Eareckson and one of 
his wife, Elizabeth White Goodhand Eareckson. 

Also know of a Murray cousin who has a portrait which was "always 
in the house". The subject is an Eareckson and probably John 
(died 1826) . 

GRAVEYARD 

When we visited the farm in about 1969, we found stones which 
had once marked the graves of the following: 

Benjamin Winchester Eareckson 
Elizabeth White Goodhand Eareckson 
Frederica M.E. Goodhand Eareckson 
Frances Eareckson 
Roderick Benjamin Eareckson 
Julia Caroline Eareckson 

The stones no longer marked gravesites but were on the ground in 
careless fashion under a large tree. At the time we did not 
realize the relationship between Frederica and the first two 
names listed above. The DAR record of the stones listed dates 
for Frances as 1817 - 1851. We too iead her birth date as 1817, 
when it sho~ld have been 1847. Therefore we did not know that 
Frances was a daughter of Frederica. 



.... QA-~ 
Fearing that the stones would be vandalized further, we moved the 
stones for Frederica, Roderick, and Julia Caroline, to the Wye 
Church. Since we had the incorrect date for Frances, we did not 
realize that she too was one of Frederica's children, so we left 
that stone under the tree with the stones for Benjamin Winchester 
and Eliz . White Goodhand Eareckson. 

Frederica Goodhand Eareckson was the Great-grandmother of Captain 
F. L. Eareckson, Jr. of Annapolis . 

Jean Lee Eareckson 
1990 



I John Erickson (c. 1621-1674) came to Maryland 1651. 
Received land grant for STINTON in 1658 

II Matthew (c. 1647-1704) married Dorothy Barnes 

III John (c. 1682-1747) married Elizabeth Threw in 1714 
Issue: John Matthew Jacob Johnson Charles 

Sarah Susanna Elizabeth 

IV The people of interest to us here are Matthew and Sarah. 
Matthew (1710-by 1742) Eareckson married Mary Sliny. 

Issue: Sara Elizabeth John (c.1735-c.1800) 

Sarah Eareckson (? - 1795) married Benjamin Tolson. 
No issue. Sarah purchased part of a tract called 
"Cabbin Neck" from the Fitzhughs. [John Elliott purchased 
the other part of Cabbin Neck]. When Sarah died in 1795 
her principal heir was her nephew John, "son of 
Matthew". John inherited Sara's tract of Cabbin Neck. 

V John Eareckson 
Born: c. 1735 
Died: c. 1800 
Married: ? 

VI John Eareckson 
Born c. 1765 
Died 1826. Will TECl/149 1819. 

Built the house on Batts Neck Road, Kent Island, now called 
the Legg-Eareckson Farm., between 1795-1815. 

John married either Sarah Winchester b. 1775 or her sister, 
Ann Winchester b. 1776, daughters of Margaret Derochburne 
and Thomas Winchester. The Derochburnes had patented 
Friendship Resurveyed (396 acres more or less] and 
Josephs Addition of about 60 acres. These tracts came to 
Thomas Winchester through his wife. Their daughter, wife of 
John Eareckson, inherited some of this land. 
In 1814 John received a patent for the resurvey of his land 
which included parts of Friendship Resurveyed, Gabbin 
Neck, and Neglect, [Derochburne's Neglect]. 
John's resurvey was called Eareckson's Prospect, 295 1/2 
acres. [Certificate# 84 - Patents]. 

John's wife predeceased him. Their children were: 

Benjamin Winchester Eareckson m. Eliz. White Goodhand 
Susan married James Bright in 1828 
Martha married Charles Skinner in 1826 
Emeline - did Martha die & then Emeline married 

Charles Skinner? 



VII Benjamin Winchester Eareckson 1803-1867 
Married Elizabeth White Goodhand, widow of Frederick Goodhand 
No issue. 

When Benjamin Winchester Eareckson died, his principal heir was 
Thomas Benjamin Eareckson, son of Dr. Roderick Winchester 
Eareckson. Thomas Benjamin Eareckson was the grandson of Eliz. 
White Goodhand Eareckson. 
Thomas Benjamin Eareckson received Eareckson's Prospect after a 
life interest of Eliz. White Goodhand Eareckson. 

J. Benjamin Bright, son of Susan Eareckson Bright, also 
received land. 

Benjamin Winchester Eareckson and Caroline Winchester Eareckson 
(wife of Roderick) were first cousins because his mother and her 
father were brother and sister. [She was a daughter of Thomas 
Winchester & Ann Pryor]. 

Benjamin Winchester Eareckson & Dr. Roderick Winchester 
Eareckson are more closely related through the Winchesters than 
through the Earecksons. 

Ref: Of History and Houses. 1982 

Jean Lee Eareckson, Annapolis, MD 1990 
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QA-205 Beveridge Farm 
Stevensville vicinity 
Orlando Ridout V 1981 
Front facade from Northwest 





QA-205 Beveridge Farm 
Stevensville vicinity 
Orlando Ridout V 1981 
Rear facade from Southeast 


